

Analyze Assure Accelerate™

Application Note

Trunking Gateway: Configuring for Testing

June 2004



Spirent Communications, Inc.

27349 Agoura Road Calabasas Hills, CA 91301 USA

Support Contacts

E-mail: support@spirentcom.com Web: http://support.spirentcom.com Toll Free: 1-800-SPIRENT (1-800-774-7368) Phone: + 1 818-676-2300 Fax: +1 818-881-9154

Copyright

© 2003 Spirent Communications, Inc. All Rights Reserved.

All of the company names and/or brand names and/or product names referred to in this document, in particular, the name "Spirent" and its logo device, are either registered trademarks or trademarks of Spirent plc and its subsidiaries, pending registration in accordance with relevant national laws. All other registered trademarks or trademarks are the property of their respective owners.

The information contained in this document is subject to change without notice and does not represent a commitment on the part of Spirent Communications. The information in this document is believed to be accurate and reliable, however, Spirent Communications assumes no responsibility or liability for any errors or inaccuracies that may appear in the document.

Warranty

Spirent Communications, Inc.("Spirent") warrants that its Products will conform to the description on the face of order, that it will convey good title thereto, and that the Product will be delivered free from any lawful security interest or other lien or encumbrance.

Spirent further warrants to Customer that hardware which it supplies and the tangible media on which it supplies software will be free from significant defects in materials and workmanship for a period of twelve (12) months, except as otherwise noted, from the date of delivery (the "Warranty Period"), under normal use and conditions.

To the extent the Product is or contains software ("Software"), Spirent also warrants that during the Warranty Period, the Software which it supplies will operate substantially in accordance with the specifications supplied by Spirent for such Software. Spirent does not warrant that the functions contained in the Software will meet a specific requirement or that the operation will be uninterrupted or error free. Spirent shall have no warranty obligations whatsoever with respect to any Software which has been modified in any manner by Customer or any third party. The Warranty Period for Wireless software products shall be defined as ninety (90) days from the date of delivery.

Defective Products and Software under warranty shall be, at Spirent's discretion, repaired or replaced or a credit issued to Customer's account for an amount equal to the price paid for such Product provided that: (a) such Product is returned to Spirent after first obtaining a return authorization number and shipping instructions, freight prepaid, to Spirent's location in the United States; (b) Customer provides a written explanation of the defect or Software failure claimed by Customer; and (c) the claimed defect actually exists and was not caused by neglect, accident, misuse, improper installation, improper repair, fire, flood, lightning, power surges, earthquake, or alteration. Spirent will ship repaired Products to Customer, freight prepaid, within ten (10) working days after receipt of defective Products. Except as otherwise stated, any claim on account of defective materials or for any other cause whatsoever will conclusively be deemed waived by Customer unless written notice thereof is given to Spirent within the Warranty Period. Spirent reserves the right to change the warranty and service policy set forth above at any time, after reasonable notice and without liability to Customer.

TO THE EXTENT PERMITTED BY APPLICABLE LAW, ALL IMPLIED WARRANTIES, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY, NONINFRINGEMENT AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, ARE HEREBY EXCLUDED, AND THE LIABILITY OF SPIRENT, IF ANY, FOR DAMAGE RELATING TO ANY ALLEGEDLY DEFECTIVE PRODUCT SHALL BE LIMITED TO THE ACTUAL PRICE PAID BY THE CUSTOMER FOR SUCH PRODUCT. THE PROVISIONS SET FORTH ABOVE STATE SPIRENT'S ENTIRE RESPONSIBILITY AND CUSTOMER'S SOLE AND EXCLUSIVE REMEDY WITH RESPECT TO ANY BREACH OF ANY WARRANTY.



Contents

Trunking Gateway Testing1
Overview
Introduction
Configuring Tests
Configuring System Parameters
Protocol Selection Window
Partitioning and Timing Window – Association Panel
Using the Network Topology Diagram5
General
Network Elements
Example Test Cases
Test Case 1
Configuring System Parameters
Configuring the Network Topology Diagram
Placing Network Elements
Configuring Connections (Edges) 10
Test Case 2
Summary





Trunking Gateway: Configuring for Testing

This application note provides guidelines for configuring trunking gateways for testing.

In this document...

This application note contains the following topics:

- **Overview** 2
- Introduction 2
- Configuring Tests 3
- Example Test Cases 8
- Summary 14

Overview

In a family of Media Gateways, the Trunking Gateway (TG) is differentiated by its main purpose of supporting a media path from/to IP-based voice networks to/from PSTN TDM trunks. As such a unit, a TG does not have any means to process the signaling information and always requires an external call control function provided by a call agent or Media Gateway Controller (MGC). In most applications, the TG provides a bearer path between networks, where the signaling is separated from the bearer path. There can be one or more TGs in VoIP networks, and all of them can be controlled by one or more MGCs.

Quality of voice processing, capacity, and functionality under the heavy load are the most important functions of the TG that need to be tested. Abacus provides a means to load the TG by originating and terminating traffic either from the IP side or from the PSTN side. Abacus's measurements and reporting capabilities provide you with test results sufficient to troubleshoot the TG.

The main objective of this Application Note is to guide you through the steps needed to configure communication links between Abacus and the TG or TGs under test. We will focus on two specific Abacus Features used for configuring TG testing: *Clear Channel signaling* and the *Network Topology Diagram*.

It is assumed that you are already familiar with testing using Abacus and know how to assign cards, configure protocols, and specify measurements and results. If while going through this Application Note you need to refresh your knowledge of Abacus, use the Abacus Help file and Manual as reference documents.

Introduction

A TG by definition does not process any signaling protocols. To support configuration of TDM and IP trunks to test a TG, Abacus introduces a specific signaling protocol named Clear Channel. Clear Channel is an internal signaling protocol added to Abacus's supported list of protocols for emulating Common Channel Signaling (CCS) networks.

Also, a new tool was designed to help you to configure multiple parameters and properties of network interfaces between PSTN trunks, IP trunks, and MGC. This tool is the **Network Topology Diagram**.

This Application Note will walk you through the configuration steps by showing examples of the most common testing cases for TG tests. First we will configure the parameters common to all test cases and then move to configuration steps for specific tests.

Configuring Tests

Configuring System Parameters

To test a TG in all test cases, the minimum number of cards needed is one PCG or TCG card and one ICG card. You configure these cards in the **Protocol Selection** and **Partition and Timing** windows. We assume that in the **Hardware** window you have already assigned all PCGs or TCGs and ICGs for these tests to you (*Owner* is listed as *Self* in the **Shelf** panel).

Protocol Selection Window

Using the **Protocol Selection** window, you assign which ICG and PCG cards (by slot numbers) will be used to emulate the IP, MGC, and TDM Trunk, respectively. Depending on your test case and number of channels you need to load, there can be more than one card for each functional interface. The **Protocol Selection** window is where you assign additional ICG and PCG or TCG cards to emulate more IP and TDM channels.

For our examples in this Application Note, we will use the minimum number of cards (one PCG or TCG and one ICG). To configure them, we will use the **Card** and **ICG** panels of the **Protocol Selection** window.

Card Panel

Using the **Card** panel, you specify the physical interfaces you need to your TG, the signaling protocols used, and which functionality – exchange or subscriber – you need to emulate for the interfaces.

For TDM trunk PCG (or TCG) cards and for MGC emulation (ICG) cards, you must always configure the *Clear Channel Signaling* protocol.

Corresponding to a channel type (chosen in the **Physical** column), the Clear Channel protocol provides "ClrChn T1", "ClrChn E1", and "ClrChn VoIP" choices.

For a card side to be used with Clear Channel, the only option is Exchange.

Figure 1 is an example where an ICG in slot 3 is configured to emulate MGC, and a PCG in slot 2 is configured to emulate a TDM trunk. The **Circuit** column is not configured in this panel and is shown in gray.

ICG Panel

Figure 2 shows the **ICG** panel. In this panel, you need to configure ICG testing and IP parameters. In our example, one ICG card in slot 3 emulates IP trunks and MGC using the *MGCP* signaling protocol. IP Trunks emulation is specified by a number of channels mapped to PSTN over Clear Channel in the **Partition and Timing | Association** panel. The number of channels configured in **Chan Quantity** in **ICG Units Setting** represents the maximum number of available channels.

Protocol Selection									
Card	Card Channels Analog Circuits ICG VoIP								
Clock									
	Syste <u>m</u> Inte	ernal 🔽 🕻	Circ <u>u</u> it						
Slot	Туре	Physical	Signalling	Side	Law	Impedance	Frame	Line	Circuit
1	PCG3	T1	CAS	Subscriber	μ-law		ESF	B8ZS	T1 Sub
2	PCG3	T1	Clear Ch	Exchange	μ-law		ESF	B8ZS	T1 CC Ex
3	ICG3	ICG	Clear Ch	Exchange					VoIP CC Ex
4	ICG3	ICG	SIP	Subscriber					SIP Sub
5									
6									
7									
8									
9									
10									
11									
12									
13									
14									
15									
						1	1	1	
~	Card K Signaling Side								

Figure 1. Protocol Selection Window – Card Panel

Card Channels Analog Circuits ICG VolP ICG configuration: Stort Type Signaling Slot 3 Slot 4 I 1 I<	Protocol Selection	×
ICG configuration: Stort Fvpe Stanaling 1 Image: Stort 3 2 Image: Stort 3 3 ICG 4 ICG Cisp Image: Stort 3	Card Channels Analog Circuits ICG VoIP	
5	ICG configuration: I Image: Start in the sector of the sector	
✓ QK ② Cancel	✓ QK ② Cancel	

Figure 2. Protocol Selection Window – ICG Panel

The **ICG** panel is where this protocol should be configured. At least one ICG card should support the MGC protocol. We specified this ICG in the **Cards** panel as *Clear Ch* (shown as *VoiP ClrCh* in the **Configuration/Signaling** table on the **IGC** panel). In the **ICG Units Setting** table, we selected *MGCP* from the **Signaling** drop-down list in the **Unit** column.

In the **ICG Units Setting** table, in a case when only one ICG card is used, the **Chan Quantity** field should always have a number of channels specified. The **Signaling** field in this case should always have *MGCP* or *MEGACO* specified.

When two or more ICG cards are used, if any ICG card is dedicated to the emulation of MGC, the **Chan Quantity** field should be set to 0. If any other card is dedicated to the emulation of IP Trunks only, the **Signaling** field of the **ICG Units Setting** table should be set to *None*.

Partitioning and Timing Window – Association Panel

In this window, we need to specify how many voice channels to configure for the test and how these channels are mapped between PSTN and IP trunks. We need to define how to group the channels (*Set*), which channels and how many (*From, To, Total*), traffic direction (from Terminate toward Originate, or others), and how sets are linked.

Figure 3 shows an example where we configured a total of 8 channels linked in sets between T1 ClrCh Exchange 1 and VoIP ClrCh Exchange 1. For convenience, we used the **Split** button to show both panels in the same window. Clicking in turn in the **T1 ClrCh Exchange** panel and the **VoIP ClrCh Exchange** panel allows you to configure the PSTN and IP trunks. The links shown in the example are associated to Set number 1 and thus have Exchange 1 defined in the link name.

Using the Network Topology Diagram

General

The testing configuration for a Trunking Gateway is always a network of interconnected TGs, MGCs, PSTN Trunks, and IP Trunks. Abacus provides you with a graphical tool, where with a small number of network elements, you can depict the testing network. The **Network Topology Diagram** provides a means to interconnect pre-defined elements and specify their interfaces. You initiate the diagram by selecting the main menu **Configure** | **Network Topology Diagram** command.

In the steps below you will learn how to use the **Network Topology Diagram**. The examples shown are based on the most practical Test Cases.

Partition and Timing								
Associatio	n Timir	ng and Si	cripts Pi	rotocols				
Set	From	To	Total	Configuration	Links	Path Confirmation	_	
1 🔽	1	8	8	то то то	T1 ClrCh Ex 1	Default	-	
2 🗖								
3 🗖								
4 🗖								
5 🗖								
6 🗖								
7 🗖							-	
<u>\</u> 11 S	ubscribe	r: 336	<u>(110</u>	ClrCh Exchange: 336		hange: 128	() () () () () () () () () ()	
Set	From	Το	Total	Configuration	Links	Path Confirmation		
1 🔽	1	8	8		VolP ClrCh Ex 1	Default	<u> </u>	
2 🗆		-	Ū			Dordak		
3 🗖								
4								
5 🗖								
6 🗖								
7 🗖							-	
\T1 9	ubscribe	r: 336	<u>) T1 CI</u>	rCh Exchange: 330	VolP ClrCh Excha	ange: 128 /		
- Man				- Channela		Phones	Cala	
map □ E <u>n</u> a	able	<u></u>	ар	Crianneis Contiguous	Active terminal Attachments	tes Global Phones Frones By Set	Delete Didy Delete	
Image: Concel Ima								

Figure 3. Partition and Timing Window – Association Panel

Network Elements

The existing collection of elements is shown on the Icon Bar (*Figure 4*) on the top of the **Network Topology Diagram** window. The elements are separated into two groups: representation of different Devices Under Tests (DUTs) on the left side, and Abacus Emulation elements on the right side. Each network element has interfaces specific to its functions. The thick black lines attached to an element icon are the interface lines (vertexes).



Figure 4. Network Topology Diagram – Icon Bar

Only Media Gateway (**MG**) as a representation of a DUT Trunking Gateway is presented in this application note. Two other MG elements, **IP Elem** and **PSTN Chip**, are used in test cases where the MG is not a TG. These two DUTs do not use MGC call control and have only IP or only PSTN trunks on both sides.

The element icons and their purposes and properties are specified in the following paragraphs. We will learn how to configure these properties in *"Test Case 1" on page 8* and *"Test Case 2" on page 13.*

DUT Media Gateway

The DUT MG element (Figure 5) supports three interfaces:



Figure 5. DUT Element – Media Gateway

- *CA* (Call Agent) toward Media Gateway Controller. A signaling protocol, IP address, and Ports should be specified for the MG.
- *VoIP* toward IP Trunk or another MG. *VoIP* connection specifies the number and properties of RTP streams toward IP phones emulated by an Abacus ICG card.
- *Ep* (endpoints) toward either PSTN trunk or another Media Gateway. Endpoints are the general name used in Abacus for endpoints and terminations as they are specified for MGCP and MEGACO protocols. In our testing cases, the endpoints are DS0 channels. In Abacus, an endpoint always has a channel associated with it.

Abacus Media Gateway Controller

The Abacus **MGC** (*Figure 6*) emulates call control messages between a TG and a Signaling Network. MGCP and MEGACO are supported. The signaling protocol, IP address, and Port should be specified.



Figure 6. Abacus Element – Media Gateway Controller

Abacus PSTN Trunk

The Abacus **PSTN** trunk element (*Figure 7*) emulates TDM traffic over T1 or E1 physical interfaces. Each interface can be connected to more than one Media Gateway Endpoint. The number of channels and signaling interface should be specified.



Figure 7. Abacus Element – PSTN Trunk

Abacus VoIP Trunk

The Abacus **VoIP** trunk element (*Figure 8*) emulates IP traffic over the Ethernet. RTP stream parameters should be specified and mapped to PSTN channels.



Figure 8. Abacus Element – VoIP Trunk

Example Test Cases

Test Case 1

In this case, we will discuss the most used configuration, where one Trunking Gateway has a PSTN trunk on one side and an IP trunk on another. The MGC provides a call control. Abacus also supports test cases where two or more PSTN trunks or two or more IP trunks are connected on both sides of a TG.

Refer to the test setup shown in *Figure 9*. You need an Abacus system with at least one PCG or TCG card and one ICG card connected into the network. The PCG or TCG card emulates the PSTN trunk, and the ICG card emulates the IP trunk and the MGCP (our case) or MEGACO interfaces of the MGC. Two or more ICG cards can also be used, one or more for the IP trunk and one or more for MGC emulation.



Figure 9. Test Diagram: Test Case 1

Configuring System Parameters

As noted before, the steps performed in "*Configuring System Parameters*" on page 3 are applicable to any test case. We have already configured system parameters in the **Protocol Selection** and **Partition and Timing** windows for this test case.

The next step is to configure network parameters using the Network Topology Diagram.

Configuring the Network Topology Diagram

Refer to the Abacus representation of Test Case 1 in *Figure 10*. To create this configuration, we will perform the following steps:

Placing Network Elements

- 1 In the icon bar, click Abacus MGC, Abacus PSTN, Abacus VoIP, and (SUT) MG. Abacus automatically places the elements as shown in *Figure 10*.
- 2 Make the connection (edge) between elements **PSTN** and **MG**:
 - **a** Click on Abacus PSTN vertex *T1*.
 - **b** Hold down the **Ctrl** key and click on **MG** vertex *Ep*.
 - **c** Click **Connect** to create the edge.
- 3 Make the connection (edge) between elements MGC and MG:
 - a Click on Abacus MGC vertex MGCs.
 - **b** Hold down the **Ctrl** key and click on **MG** vertex *CA*.
 - **c** Click **Connect** to create the edge.
- 4 Make the connection (edge) between elements **IP** and **MG**. To have the signaling supported, the connection should be done between the MGC and the IP trunk.
 - a Click on Abacus MGC vertex MGC.
 - **b** Hold down the **Ctrl** key and click on **Abacus VoIP**.
 - c Click Connect to create the edge.



Figure 10. Network Topology Diagram Setup: Test Case 1

Configuring Connections (Edges)

To configure a connection properties, click on the corresponding edge. The line will change its color to blue, and the edge properties will appear on the **Properties Viewer** on the left side of the **Network Topology Diagram**.

In *Figure 10*, the **Properties Viewer** shows properties of the connection between PSTN and MG.

You can edit the parameters shown in the **Properties Viewer** by using the **Edge Editor**. The **Edge Editor** can be opened by either clicking on the edge and then on the **Edit** button or by double-clicking on the edge. The **Edge Editor** provides additional GUI panels where channel assignments can be viewed in the circuit diagram.

The use of the editor is presented in the following paragraphs. The results of all our configuring connection activities will be displayed in the **Properties Viewer** every time you click on an edge. We will go through each step for a PSTN to MG connection and show the specifics for IP to MG and MGC to MG properties.

Configuring properties and reviewing the results will be the same for each edge you choose to edit. You can follow the steps described above for PSTN to MG and edit the properties of the communication interfaces from MGC and TG and from IP and TG.

PSTN to MG

Double-clicking on the edge opens a window with both PSTN and MG endpoints for the edge. The **PSTN** side has two panels, **Properties** and **Timeslots**, and the **MG** side has one panel, Endpoint **Properties**. *Figure 11* shows the PSTN **Properties** and Endpoint **Properties** panels, and *Figure 12* shows the PSTN **Timeslots** and Endpoints **Properties** panels.

🗏 Abacus PST	N.PSTN Channels T	1(T3) To MG	Endpoints Map			_ 🗆 🗙
Properties Tim	neslots		Properties			
PSTN Channels	т1(т3)		Endpoints			8
Laver1	T1		Banks	None		
Range	1-8		BankSize	0		
			BankStart	0		
			FileName	Ep mult.epp		
			RootTerm	user		
			SequentialPho	3332001		
			Source	Sequential		
					🕑 ОК	<u>& C</u> ar

Figure 11. PSTN Properties and Endpoints Properties Panels

🗏 Abacus PSTN.PSTN Channels T1(T3) To MG	Endpoints Map			_ 🗆 🗙
Properties Timeslots	Properties			
	Endpoints			
	Banks	None		
	BankSize	0		
	BankStart	0		
	FileName	Ep mult.epp		
Showwidth 24 👻 Timoclat	RootTerm	user		
	SequentialPho	3332001		
	Source	Sequential		
			⊘ OK	<u>& C</u> ar

Figure 12. PSTN Timeslots and Endpoints Properties Panels

• **PSTN Properties Panel** (left side of *Figure 11*)

The PSTN Properties panel provides you with the following options:

• Input the parameters of channels you did not input during the System Configuration steps • Change properties you input during the System Configuration steps

In the example in *Figure 11*, you can change the physical interface from T1 to E1. The total number of channels in a range can be changed from 1-8 to any other range from available TDM slots

• **PSTN Timeslots Panel** (left side of *Figure 12*)

This panel is available for edges where physical channels are configured. You can view the current status of a channel, where a channel represents the physical channel or timeslot. The color of the LED specifies if the channel in use by other connection (blue), assigned to this edge (amber), or available (green).

Channels coded blue cannot be changed on this panel. Status of channels coded amber or green can be toggled in the following ways:

- Toggle the status of an individual channel by clicking on its LED.
- Toggle the status of multiple consecutive channels as follows:
 - 1. Hold the left mouse button down while dragging the cursor over a group of channels. Selected channels are indicated by a blue background.
 - 2. Right-click to display a popup menu.
 - 3. To toggle unselected (green) channels to selected (amber), click **Select Channels** in the popup menu. To toggle selected (amber) channels to selected (green), click **Unselect Channels**.

Changing and saving the channel or channels status in this window will have the same effect as if you done it in the **Partition and Timing** and **Protocol Selection** windows. When you restart the test, these changes will take effect.

• Endpoint Properties Panel (right side of *Figure 11* and *Figure 12*)

An Endpoint is a Trunking Gateway in a set of logical channels connection points to the link to the PSTN side of a testing network. The properties of this point are the properties of TG under test.

Endpoints are characterized by the phone number configuration options. The properties displayed and configured on this panel should be mapped in the way described in the Abacus "Phone Numbers: MGCP and MEGACO" help file.

MGC to MG

Figure 13 shows details of the **Properties Viewer** panels. You can see that instead of the **Timeslot** panel, an **Abacus MGC** panel is displayed. This panel shows and provides the ability to edit the slot numbers and unit numbers of ICG card(s) assigned for MGC emulation.

🗏 Abacus MGC.List of Abacus MGCs To MG.Ca	all Agent Map
Properties Abacus MGC	Properties
Slt/Ur 1 2 3 4 3 •	Call Agent IIP 10.2.16.15 Port 0 Signaling None
	<u> </u>

Figure 13. Abacus MGC and Call Agent Properties Panels

IP to MG

As you can see from *Figure 14*, this editor window also consists of two sides, but unlike in the previous screen, there are two panels in both parts.

It should also be mentioned that we configure IP channels on the left side, but instead of configuring endpoints of the MG, we configure MGC properties. On the **Network Topology Diagram**, a connection between IP Trunk and MG is also shown as a logical connection between IP Trunk and MGC. The reason for that is that the endpoints or terminations of the MG should be configured one time for both sides, PSTN and IP. We made the mapping between PSTN and IP channels in **Partition and Timing/Association** Panel, when linked Set number 1 for both IP and TDM sides.

Dacus MGC.List of Abacus MGCs Map
Properties Abacus MGC
Slt/Ur 1 2 3 4
fault ipp 3 O
3
tial Port
🥑 ОК 🛛 😵 <u>С</u> е

Figure 14. VoIP Channels Properties and Abacus MGC Panels

Test Case 2

It is useful to review a test case where two or more Trunking Gateways are connected in a network. As an example, the network configuration shown in *Figure 15* is used. In this test, Abacus emulates two PSTN trunks connected to TGs, while these two TGs exchange

media traffic over an ATM. This test case can be extended to any configuration where two or more TGs are connected back-to-back and use any standard or proprietary media transmission protocols between them. Abacus supports this test case for all combinations of PSTN and IP trunks on both sides. Both sides can be IP trunks, or PSTN (shown), or IP on any side and PSTN on another.



Figure 15. Test Diagram: Test Case 2

The **Network Topology Diagram** representing this test case is shown in *Figure 16*. An Abacus MGC is connected to the CA point of each TG, and an Abacus PSTN T1 is connected to endpoints of each TG.

VoIP connection points of the TG are not connected together. Abacus does not emulate these points and is not aware of the protocols used by TGs.

We will not go through Configuring System Parameters and Configuring Network Topology diagram for this test case. The steps are the same as they described for "*Test Case 1*" on page 8.

Summary

This application note has shown how to configure Abacus to emulate all network elements required for Trunking Gateway testing. A specific Clear Channel signaling protocol is implemented in Abacus to emulate the features of Common Channels Signaling used in PSTN.

You learned how to use different GUI options for a more convenient and expeditious way of mapping your testing needs into connections and properties emulation. Network **Topology Diagram** knowledge will help you to easily visualize and set up a variety of parameters and connections.

Along with knowledge of functionality and capacity testing and verification means provided by Abacus, the steps outlined in this Application Note will guide you in you activities.



Figure 16. Network Topology Diagram Setup: Test Case 2

